
 
 

 
 
 
DYDD IAU, 16 MAWRTH 2023 
 
 
AT:  YR AELOD O’R CABINET  DROS ADFYWIO, HAMDDEN,  
DIWYLLIANT A THWRISTIAETH 
 
 
YR WYF DRWY HYN YN EICH GALW I FYNYCHU RHIF-
GYFARFOD O’R YR AELOD CABINET DROS ADFYWIO, 
HAMDDEN, DIWYLLIANT A THWRISTIAETH A GYNHELIR AM 
10.00 YB, AR DYDD IAU, 23AIN MAWRTH, 2023 ER MWYN 
CYFLAWNI’R MATERION A AMLINELLIR AR YR AGENDA 
ATODEDIG. 
 
 

Wendy Walters 

PRIF WEITHREDWR 

 
Swyddog Democrataidd: Emma Bryer 
Ffôn (llinell uniongyrchol): 01267 224029 
E-bost: ebryer@sirgar.gov.uk 
 

Wendy Walters Prif Weithredwr, Chief Executive, 
Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin. SA31 1JP 
County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Pecyn Dogfennau



 

 
 
 

 

A G E N D A   
  

1. DATGAN BUDDIANNAU PERSONOL. 
 

 

 
2. CYMERADWYO A LLOFNODI HYSBYSIAD PENDERFYNIAD Y 

CYFARFOD A GYNHALIWYD AR YR 17EG CHWEFROR 2023. 
 

3 - 6 

 
3. CYMORTH ARIANNOL O'R CRONFEYDD GRANTIAU 

CANLYNOL: GRONFA CYLLID A DARGEDIR 
 

7 - 18 

 
4. CYMORTH ARIANNOL O'R CRONFEYDD GRANTIAU 

CANLYNOL: CRONFA YNNI ADNEWYDDADWY BUSNES SIR 
GAERFYRDDIN 

 

19 - 24 

 
 
 
 
Sylwer: - Nid oes hawl gan y wasg a'r cyhoedd fynychu'r cyfarfod. Bydd y cofnod penderfyniad yn 
cael ei gyhoeddi fel arfer o fewn 3 diwrnod gwaith. 
 



 

 
 

YR AELOD CABINET DROS ADFYWIO, HAMDDEN, DIWYLLIANT 
A THWRISTIAETH 

 
DYDD Gwener, 17 Chwefror 2023 

 
YN BRESENNOL: Y Cynghorydd: G.H. John (Aelod o’r Cabinet) (Yn rhithwir) 
 
Roedd y swyddogion canlynol yn bresennol (Yn rhithwir): 
I. Jones, Pennaeth Hamdden 
H. Morgan, Rhelowr Datblygu Economaidd 
S. Petherick, Uwch-Rheolwr Gweithrediadau Actif 
R. Phillips, Rheolwr Rhaglenni Ewropeaidd 
B. Walters, Leader Co-ordinator 
K. Thomas, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
 
Rhith-Gyfarfod 10.00  - 10.40 yb 
 
1. DATGAN BUDDIANNAU PERSONOL. 

 
Ni chafwyd datganiadau o fuddiant personol. 
 

2. CYMERADWYO A LLOFNODI HYSBYSIAD PENDERFYNIAD Y CYFARFOD A 
GYNHALIWYD AR YR 19EG IONAWR 2023. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD llofnodi Cofnod Penderfyniadau'r cyfarfod oedd wedi ei 
gynnal ar 19 Ionawr 2023, gan ei fod yn gywir. 
 

3. CYMERADWYO RHAGLENNI ANGORI SPF Y DU A THEMÂU AR GYFER 
GALWAD AGORED PROSIECTAU ANNIBYNNOL 
 
Atgoffwyd yr Aelod Cabinet fod y Cabinet wedi derbyn argymhelliad y Bartneriaeth 
Adfywio yn flaenorol ar y modelau cyflawni ar gyfer gweithredu Cronfa Ffyniant 
Gyffredin y DU yn Sir Gaerfyrddin ar gyfer y themâu/prosiectau canlynol: 
  

       Rhaglenni Angor - Rhaglenni thematig a ddatblygwyd o dan bob un o 
themâu allweddol y Gronfa Ffyniant Gyffredin a fydd yn rheoli rhannau 
mawr o'r strategaeth fuddsoddi. 

       Prosiectau annibynnol - Ceisiadau strategol a fydd yn mynd i'r afael â 
heriau nad ydynt yn cael eu cynnwys gan y prosiectau Angor. Bydd 
ceisiadau'n cael eu gwahodd drwy alwadau agored. 

       Prosiectau a gomisiynwyd - Caffael Gweithgaredd i ddarparu gweithgaredd 
wedi'i ddiffinio'n union nad yw'n cael ei gyflawni gan y modelau cyflenwi y 
manylir arnynt uchod. 

  
Adroddwyd, o ran Galwad Agored Prosiectau Annibynnol, bod ymarfer mapio 
wedi'i wneud (Atodiad 2 i'r adroddiad) lle aseswyd heriau a chyfleoedd allweddol a 
nodwyd o fewn Cynllun Buddsoddi Sir Gaerfyrddin yn erbyn y cyfleoedd cyllido 
sydd ar gael o fewn y rhaglenni Angor ar gyfer y blaenoriaethau buddsoddi 
Cymunedau a Lle a Chefnogi Busnesau. Byddai ymarfer tebyg yn cael ei gynnal ar 
gyfer blaenoriaeth Pobl a Sgiliau unwaith y byddai'r rhaglen Angor o fewn y 
flaenoriaeth honno wedi'i datblygu'n llawn. 
  

Tudalen 3

Eitem Rhif  2



 

 
 

Yn dilyn yr ymarfer mapio hwnnw ac yn seiliedig ar ganfyddiadau a mewnbynnau'r 
is-grwpiau blaenoriaeth, cynghorwyd yr Aelod Cabinet fod cymeradwyaeth yn cael 
ei geisio am alwadau agored ar gyfer ceisiadau am brosiectau Annibynnol sy'n 
canolbwyntio ar y themâu canlynol. 
  

- Prosiectau sy'n ymateb i'r cyfleoedd yn y Strategaeth Arloesi Lleol  – 
Digidol, Iechyd, Yr Economi Gylchol, a'r Economi Sylfaenol         

-        Cymorth gwirfoddoli 
-        Cymorth i fentrau cymdeithasol 
-        Modelau bwyd lleol 
-        Teithio llesol a thrafnidiaeth wledig 
-        Prosiectau twristiaeth / diwylliant / treftadaeth strategol 
-        Prosiectau sero net strategol ledled y sir 

  
O ran yr Angor Gwledig ac elfen Hwb Fach y Wlad, y cyfeirir ato o fewn yr 
adroddiad, cafodd yr Aelod Cabinet y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf ynghylch sut y 
byddai hynny'n cael ei weithredu trwy sefydlu canolfannau Hwb gwledig ar draws 
trefi marchnad gwledig y Sir gan gynnig mynediad i wasanaethau, gwybodaeth a 
chefnogaeth i breswylwyr gwledig. 
  
PENDERFYNWYD 
  
3.1 Cymeradwyo Rhaglen Angor Cymunedau Cynaliadwy fel yr 

argymhellwyd gan Bartneriaeth Adfywio Sir Gaerfyrddin 
3.2 Cymeradwyo Rhaglen Angor Lle fel yr argymhellwyd gan 

Bartneriaeth Adfywio Sir Gaerfyrddin 
3.3 Cymeradwyo Rhaglen Angor Gwledig fel yr argymhellwyd gan 

Bartneriaeth Adfywio Sir Gaerfyrddin 
3.4 Cymeradwyo'r Rhaglen Angor Cefnogi Busnesau Lleol fel yr 

argymhellwyd gan Bartneriaeth Adfywio Sir Gaerfyrddin 
3.5  Cymeradwyo'r manylion o fewn y papur Prosiectau Annibynnol a 

chymeradwyo'r themâu allweddol i'w cyflwyno ar gyfer galwad 
agored fel yr argymhellwyd gan y Bartneriaeth Adfywio. 

  
 

4. TALIADAU HAMDDEN 2023-24 
 
Ystyriodd yr Aelod Cabinet yr adroddiad ynghylch Taliadau Hamdden 2023-24 a 
oedd yn gofyn am gymeradwyo'r taliadau arfaethedig a oedd yn ffurfio rhan o'r 
cynllun cynhyrchu incwm ar gyfer yr isadran hamdden yn 2023/24. Roedd yr 
adroddiad yn cynnwys taliadau ar gyfer yr isadrannau canlynol o fewn 
Gwasanaethau Hamdden a hefyd yn manylu ar nifer o ffactorau, gan gynnwys 
grymoedd y farchnad, a oedd wedi dylanwadu ar lefel arfaethedig y taliadau:- 
  

Tudalen 4



 

 
 

        Gwasanaethau Diwylliannol (Y Celfyddydau, Amgueddfeydd, Theatrau a'r 
Gwasanaeth Archifau) 

        Lleoliadau Hamdden a Chwaraeon (Canolfannau Hamdden, pyllau nofio, 
cynnyrch ar-lein Actif  a Thaliadau Chwaraeon Cymunedol Actif) 

        Hamdden Awyr Agored (Parciau Gwledig, gan gynnwys Parc Arfordirol y 
Mileniwm, maes parcio Traeth Pentywyn a Chanolfan Addysg Awyr Agored 
Pentywyn. 

  
PENDERFYNWYD bod y Taliadau Hamdden ar gyfer 2023-24 fel y nodir yn yr 
adroddiad yn cael eu cymeradwyo. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
_______________________________   __________________ 
AELOD O’R CABINET     DYDDIAD 
 

Tudalen 5



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

 
 

CYFARFOD PENDERFYNIADAU AELOD Y CABINET AR GYFER 
ADFYWIO, HAMDDEN, DIWYLLIANT A THWRISTIAETH 

 
23/03/2023 

Aelod y Cabinet: Y Portffolio: 
 
Cynghorydd Gareth John 

 
Cyfarfod Penderfyniadau Aelod Cabinet –  
Adfywio, Hamdden, Diwylliant a Thwristiaeth 
 

 
CYMORTH ARIANNOL O'R CRONFEYDD GRANTIAU CANLYNOL: 

GRONFA CYLLID A DARGEDIR  

Yr Argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen: 
 
Gronfa Cyllid a Dargedir - Atodiad 1 
2 Gais -  Cyfanswm gwerth = £25,000 
 
 
 
                                
Cyfanswm nifer y ceisiadau =   2           Cyfanswm eu gwerth = £25,000.00 
 
 
Rhesymau:  
 
 
Datblygu Cymunedau Cynaliadwy yn Sir Gaerfyrddin 
 
 
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth 
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: 
Helen L Morgan 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad: 
Caroline Owen 
 

Swydd: 
Rheolwr Datblygu 
Economaidd  
 
 Cydlynydd Biwro 
 

Rhif Ffôn: 01267 242367 
HLMorgan@sirgar.gov.uk 
 
 
Rhif Ffôn: 01269 590216 
CAOwen@sirgar.gov.uk 
 

 
  

Tudalen 7

Eitem Rhif  3

mailto:CAOwen@sirgar.gov.uk


 

 

Declaration of Personal Interest (if any): 
None 
 
 
 

Dispensation Granted to Make Decision (if any): 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 

DECISION MADE: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed:  
____________________________________________________________DATE:_______ 
                                                                   CABINET MEMBER  
 

 
The following section will be completed by the Democratic Services Officer in attendance 
at the meeting 
 
Recommendation of Officer 
adopted 

YES / NO 
 

Recommendation of the Officer 
was adopted subject to the 
amendment(s) and reason(s) 
specified: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Reason(s) why the Officer’s 
recommendation was not 
adopted: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Tudalen 8



 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS MEETING FOR REGENERATION, 

LEISURE, CULTURE & TOURISM 
 

23rd March 2023 
 
 

Financial Assistance from the following grant funds:  
Targeted Finance Fund  

 
 

To approve the following: 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS / KEY DECISIONS REQUIRED: 
 
Targeted Finance Fund – Annex 1 
2 Applications – Total Value = £25,000 
 
 
 
 
Total Number of Applications - 2     Total Value = £25,000.00 
 
DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED  YES 

 

 
IMPLICATIONS 

 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report: 
 
Signed:     Helen L Morgan                                         Economic Development Manager 
                                           
Policy and 
Crime & 
Disorder  
 

Legal  Finance  ICT  Risk 
Management 
Issues  

Organisational 
Development  

Physical 
Assets   

NONE 
 

NONE  
 

NONE  
 

NONE  
 

NONE  
 
 

 NONE  
 
 

NONE  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 9



 

 
CONSULTATIONS 

 
 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below. 

Signed: Helen L Morgan                                                          Economic Development Manager 

1.Local Member(s) As per individual report 
2.Community / Town Council   As per individual report 
3.Relevant Partners   As per individual report 
4.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations As per individual report 
Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW      
 
Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public 
inspection  

 
Targeted Finance Fund 
 
 
 

 
TFF-22-05 
TFF-22-07 
 
 

 
County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP 
 
 
 

 
 

Tudalen 10



 
 

Annex 1 
 

Targeted Finance Fund  
2022-2023 

Report Author: Caroline Owen/Jayne Pritchard 
CAOwen@carmarthenshire.gov.uk 

JPritchard@carmarthenshire.gov.uk 
Tel: 01269 590216 

 
Budget Available - £26,000.00 

 
Application Reference: TFF-22-07 

 
1 of 2 

 
Project Title Vision 2022 – Quay Centre feasibility study 

Applicant Carmarthenshire Water Safety Partnership 
Ward Taf Myrddin 

Key Account 
Management 

The Targeted Finance Fund is a discretionary fund available to Key 
Account Management (KAM) clients. For an organisation to become a 
KAM client they must be a third sector not for profit organisation that falls 
into one of the following 3 categories:  
 

• Existing social enterprises that have the potential to grow, be 
sustainable and create employment  

• Emerging projects that have the potential to create jobs  
• Third sector organisations that deliver vital services within our 

communities 
 

Project Description This project is to conduct a feasibility and viability study for the 
redevelopment of the Quay Centre (QC), to demonstrate there is a 
sustainable future for this iconic multiple-use heritage and community 
centre, on the banks of the river Towy, at the heart of communications 
links in the town of Carmarthen. 
 
Despite being on a one-year recuring lease and requiring some repair 
and improvements to basic services such as heating, the building and its 
environments have been widely used, supported and maintained by 
volunteers from several groups over several years, which has been 
coordinated by Carmarthen Water Safety Partnership, and supported by 
Carmarthen Coracle and Nets men’s Association, Gwendraeth Valley 
Paddlers, Carmarthen Boat Club and Carmarthen Rowing Club, as well 
as other community groups. 
 
The redevelopment of this building and site will offer significant support 
for all safe and managed water-based activities along the quayside, a 
continued growth in water safety awareness and provision, a community 
facility for people to congregate and learn more about Carmarthen’s 
maritime heritage, as well as a boost to the positive and safe use of the 
area along the quayside. 
 

Tudalen 11

mailto:CAOwen@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:JPritchard@carmarthenshire.gov.uk


 
 

This is the next stage of realising the goal of the Vision 2022 document, 
created by the stakeholder groups already making limited use of the QC 
within the constraints of a recurring annual lease, to transform the Quay 
Centre into a vibrant and sustainable community hub, promoting safe 
use of the waterway in Carmarthen to the wider community. 
 
This grant will be spent on obtaining a feasibility study, with associated 
recommendations to secure a long-term lease and enable the next stage 
to fully redevelop and refurbish the Centre to create a sustainable, 
practical, and welcoming multi-function community resource. 
 
There are other community hubs around Wales and Carmarthenshire, 
each serving specific local needs. This building and its setting are 
uniquely positioned to build on Carmarthen’s heritage and traditions, 
especially around coracles and river activities, promoting safe and fun 
use of water related activities, both on and off the river. The Quay Centre 
and associated clubs have hosted the successful and well attended 
annual river festivals, run on the water experiences, and promoted 
Carmarthen’s coracle heritage, but more could be done. 
 
Improving the building, extending, and opening it up to add light, improve 
storage, people capacity and services, make more use of renewable 
energy and insulation, would make it a practical all year-round 
sustainable resource. This will require further funding to achieve, and 
there are suitable funds that could be applied for, but all dependent on 
the certainty of a longer lease.  
 
This regeneration fund is being applied for to build a comprehensive 
report that demonstrates the feasibility of the vision and true value of the 
building and its environs to the community. 
 
The QC is uniquely situated as a gateway to Carmarthen, where the 
original maritime trade came ashore, next to a main arterial road, on 
National Cycle Network route 47, and within 100 metres of route 4. It is 
also comfortably within 5 minutes level walk of both Carmarthen bus and 
railway stations. 
 
It is ideally situated to tell the story of Carmarthen’s maritime heritage, 
support water-based activities and community engagement, plus grow 
awareness of water safety, and foster the enjoyment of water-based 
activities. 
 
Finally, in addition to the proximity to the river and slipway, the area 
around the QC is one of the few remaining green spaces in Carmarthen 
town. As well as heritage and on-the-water river activities, it offers a 
pleasant natural environment. 
 

Economic Benefit • Number of individuals into training/education - 
• Number of individuals into volunteering - 20 
• Number of community groups/organisations assisted -1 
• New enterprises created - 
• Number of jobs created - 

Tudalen 12



 
 

• Increased turnover /profitability - 
• Public and private leverage funding - £1,250.00 

 
Total Project Cost 

 
Eligible Capital 

 
Eligible Revenue 

 
Ineligible Costs 

 
Amount and % of  
grant requested. 

 
Match funding 

£6,250.00 – Gross 
 

Nil 
 

£6,250.00 
Feasibility Study  

 
Nil 

 
£5,000.00 @ 80% 

 
£1,250.00 

Own funds secured 

Cllr and Officer 
Consultations 

Undertaken 

• Cllr Alun Lenny 
• Cllr Emlyn Schiavone 
• Cllr Peter Hughes Griffiths 
• Cllr Russell Sparks 
• Luke Milward – CCC Economic Development 
• CCC Corporate Property 
• Hawys Barrett – Economic Development Co-ordinator 

Evidence of Need / 
Community 
Engagement 

A Task and Finish Group brought together stakeholders from the varied 
clubs using the Centre at the start of 2022, to find out what was 
important to them all, and how the facility could be improved to 
contribute further as a community facility.  
 
This resulted in the Vision 2022 report, which outlines the improvements 
that would add most value to the building and riverside site but 
implementing these changes would be dependent on a longer lease for 
the building. 

 
Contributing to key 

Strategies 
The Council’s Corporate Strategy 2018-2023 
Developing the QC facilities will lead to a more frequently occupied and 
sustainable building, and a more pleasant space by the river to improve 
the local environment. It will also provide a welcoming place for growing 
awareness of water safety and local river history, with facilities to 
promote activities and exercise (e.g., rowing, kayaking, coracling) in 
safety with experienced club members. 
 
The Wellbeing of Future Generations Act a Prosperous Wales 
The QC itself already supports the goals of a Wales of cohesive 
communities using the building as a hub for many community groups, 
clubs, and their activities, as well as the goal of a healthier Wales 
through the encouragement of safe participation in a range of water-
based activities. 
 
● A Wales of Vibrant Culture and Thriving Welsh Language - 60% of 
the current users are Welsh speakers 

Tudalen 13



 
 

 
Ownership/Lease Currently an annual rental agreement with Carmarthenshire County 

Council 
  

Business 
Plan/Officer 
Comments 

including details of 
support moving 

forward/next steps 
linked to growth 

and sustainability 

A refurbished Quayside Centre would attract even greater use, providing 
room hire opportunities, but also training individuals on water safety 
awareness. To refurbish the facility will require capital investment, only 
achievable with a minimum 15-year lease agreement. 
 
CWSP and the water-based clubs need to demonstrate the feasibility, 
plans, and costs required to achieve their Vision 2022 goal of the Centre 
being a sustainable, multi-function, community hub.  
 
This project will provide the basis for this transformation through a 
comprehensive feasibility study to assess the viability and requirements 
of further development of the building. 
 
The Centre already generates some income from room and facility hire, 
despite lacking effective heating and some of its other facilities in need of 
modernisation, which include kitchen, toilets, and lighting. 
 
Once refurbished it will have even more appeal as the redevelopment 
envisages adding a community café, which will also generate income, as 
well as providing an opportunity for job creation, employing staff to run 
the café and coordinate the management of the building. 
 

 
Recommendation 

 
Award - £5,000.00 

 
Subject to:  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 14



 
 

Application Reference: TFF-22-05 
 

2 of 2 
 

Project Title LMMR Café  
Applicant Llanelli and Mynydd Mawr Railway Company Ltd  

Ward Glyn 
Key Account 
Management 

The Targeted Finance Fund is a discretionary fund available to Key 
Account Management (KAM) clients. For an organisation to become a 
KAM client they must be a third sector not for profit organisation that falls 
into one of the following 3 categories:  

• Existing social enterprises that have the potential to grow, be 
sustainable and create employment.  

• Emerging projects that have the potential to create jobs a 
• Third sector organisations that deliver vital services within our 

communities a 
 

Project 
Description 

Llanelli Mynydd Mawr Railway operates from the old colliery site in 
Cynheidre. They are a registered charity that operates a heritage railway 
and museum within a 25-acre site situated along a popular 
Carmarthenshire Cycle route.  
 
They have successfully regenerated parts of this former industrial site and 
have transformed it into a tourist destination which provides local 
volunteering and employment opportunities for the residents of Cynheidre 
and surrounding areas.  
  
The railway is operational Spring to Autumn and opens for special events, 
such as Easter, Halloween, and Santa specials, which are operated 
entirely by volunteers. Future plans include expansion of the picnic area 
along with cleaning the existing pond and a railway themed children's 
playground. 
 
TFF funding is required to convert a Class 143 DMU train into a 
community café, shop, and ticket office. Other costs are for site to be 
connected to the National Grid and to create 2 part-time jobs to run this 
exciting new venture.  
 
The Cafe will be a community facility, a convenient drop off point and 
welcome resting place on Cycle Route no. 47. The project consists of 2 
main components: 

1) connecting the site to the National Grid to provide a mains power 
supply. 

2) using the power supply to expand volunteering and training 
opportunities, as well as opening a cafe to provide an additional 
source of revenue. 

 
LMMR aims to upcycle and convert an ex-Transport for Wales carriage 
which is already on site. Continuing with the railway theme, they will 
utilise seating and tables from other train carriages offering a relaxing 
lounge and dining area. 
 

Tudalen 15



 
 

The intend to serve light snacks, teas, coffees, and cold beverages. Indoor 
seating for 25/30 people with additional seating available in the heritage 
First Class Buffet Car, as well as outside during the summer months. 
 

Economic 
Benefit 

• Number of individuals into training/education - 15 
• Number of individuals into volunteering - 30 
• Number of community groups/organisations assisted - 3 
• Number of social enterprises created - 0 
• Number of jobs created – 2 PTE 
• Number of jobs safeguarded - 0 
• Public and private leverage funding - £40,457 
 
Other outputs: 
• Increased turnover / profitability - £4,844.00 
• Additional job creation within 18 months  
 

Total Project 
Cost 

 
 

Eligible Capital 
 
 
 
 
 

Eligible Revenue 
 

 
 
 
 
Ineligible Costs 

 
Amount and % of  
grant requested 

 
Match funding 

£60,457.50 
 (gross) 

 
 

£48,541 
Electricity installation/connection to grid 

Groundworks 
Furnishings 
Equipment 

 
 

£11,916.50 
Salaries  

Electricity 
Goods - appliances 

Training 
Planning Permission 

 
Nil 

 
 

£20,000 – (33%) 
 
 

£40,457.50 
£25,457.00 – LMMR - secured 

£10,000 – Heritage Lottery Fund – to be secured 
£5,000 – Coalfields Regeneration Trust – to be secured 

 
Cllr and Officer 
Consultations 

Undertaken 

Consultation and discussions with: 
• County Councillor Alex Evans – Glyn ward  

 
Letters of support: 

• Richard Benyon, Propitiator -The Cab Yard 

Tudalen 16



 
 

• David Tucker and Darren Pollit – Volunteers 
• Peter O’Brien - Treasurer Class 315 Preservation Society 
• Peter De Lacey – Secretary 73 130 Ltd. 
• Natalie Sargent, Development Manager – Wales, Coalfields 

Regeneration Trust 
• Ashley Morgan, Community Rail Officer - South West Wales 

Connected Community Rail Partnership 
• Graeme Gleaves, Chairman - London Transport Traction Group 

 
Evidence of Need 

/ 
Community 
Engagement 

LMMR is located in the heart of Carmarthenshire, it’s the perfect and 
convenient stop off point for cyclists, walkers and travellers. A major 
benefit of opening a café at this site is its location - the cafe would be 
less than 100 yards from the Sustrans cycle track running between 
Cross Hands and Llanelli.  
 
The cafe will be open to the railway’s many volunteers, residents and 
visitors to the heritage site. It is envisaged that the cafe will also provide 
a convenient meeting place for community group and visiting school 
groups. 
 
The café wouldn’t be duplicating any similar provision locally. The only 
local site for the community nearby is the Waun Wyllt restaurant but this 
is only open Thursday to Sunday and is bookings only on Sundays. They 
also operate in a higher price range than LMMR would be setting.  
 
There is nowhere along the cycle track itself for walkers and cyclists to 
stop for a drink or food. Cafes in Cross Hands are 7 miles away and the 
Bistro along the coastal path in Llanelli is 6 miles away.  
 
The cycle path is a little over 13 miles long; most daily users don’t walk 
its entire length, meaning most users need a natural ‘turning back’ point. 
Cynheidre is close to the exact centre of the route, making it a natural 
place to stop for a rest before continuing or to stop at before heading 
back the way people have come.  
 
Not only will LMMR’s volunteers and the local community benefit from 
this project but the wider community and tourists using the cycle track 
too.  
 
Opening the cafe will enable us to offer affordable and healthier food for 
all their volunteers, as well as providing a large, sheltered space for them 
to take regular breaks. The local community has nowhere to congregate, 
and this has a major impact on community resilience so offering a 
meeting place would be of massive benefit. 
 

Contributing to 
key Strategies 

Llanelli Mynydd Mawr Railway is strategically important to the local 
economy, has growth plans in line with the South West Wales Economic 
Regeneration Strategy and Regional Learning Partnership Delivery Plan 
namely: 

• Creation of jobs or safeguarding 
• Increasing turnover and/or profitability 
• Enterprise creation/innovative new project ideas 

Tudalen 17



 
 

• Skills, training and volunteering opportunities 
• Ability to lever funding 
• Creation of floor space 

 
The project aims to addresses many key priorities of local, regional and 
national strategies: 

• Carmarthenshire County Council Corporate Strategy 2018-2023 
• Strategic Equality Plan 2020-24  
• Equality Act 2010 
• Carmarthenshire County Council Wellbeing Plan 2018 -2023 
• Swansea Bay City Region Economic Regeneration Strategy 

2013-2030 
• Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
• Carmarthenshire’s Economic Recovery Plan 
• Welsh Language Standards (Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 

2011) 
 

Ownership/Lease LMMR owns the freehold 
Business 

Plan/Officer 
Comments 

including details 
of support 

moving 
forward/next 

steps linked to 
growth and 

sustainability 

LMMR is a well-established charity which is gaining momentum with its 
short-, medium- and long-term strategy for economic growth.  
 
Having electricity on site is essential for them to forward plan. 
Establishing a community café will no doubt improve the charity’s 
sustainability with a healthy income forecast. The cafe would generate 
healthy profits which will be reinvested into other community initiatives 
on site.  
 
Having a warm and welcoming base on site will have other benefits 
including supporting volunteer retention and recruitment. They have lost 
many volunteers and potential volunteers due to the lack of food and 
drink provision on site and without volunteers the railway can’t survive.  
 
The cafe will allow them to create two PTE jobs on site and help provide 
more varied volunteering and training opportunities in the future. 
 

Recommendation  Award - £20,000.00 
 

Subject to:  Match funding 
Planning permission 

 

Tudalen 18



 

 
 

CYFARFOD PENDERFYNIADAU AELOD Y CABINET AR GYFER 
ADFYWIO, HAMDDEN, DIWYLLIANT A THWRISTIAETH 

 
23/03/2023 

Aelod y Cabinet: Y Portffolio: 
 
Cynghorydd Gareth John 

 
Cyfarfod Penderfyniadau Aelod Cabinet –  
Adfywio, Hamdden, Diwylliant a Thwristiaeth 
 

 
Cymorth Ariannol o'r cronfeydd grantiau canlynol: 
Cronfa Ynni Adnewyddadwy Busnes Sir Gaerfyrddin 

Yr Argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen: 
 
Cronfa Ynni Adnewyddadwy Busnes Sir Gaerfyrddin- Atodiad 1 
1 Cais -  Cyfanswm Grant werth = £10,000 
 
 
 
                                
Cyfanswm nifer y ceisiadau =   1           Cyfanswm eu gwerth = £10,000.00 
 
 
Rhesymau:  
Cefnogi busnesau i fod yn fwy cynaliadwy ac effeithlon yn ogystal â nod CCC i fod yn garbon 
sero net erbyn 2030. 
 
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth 
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: 
Helen L Morgan 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad: 
Siân Williams 
 

Swydd: 
Rheolwr Datblygu 
Economaidd 
 
 
Swyddog Datblygu 
Economaidd 
 

Rhif Ffôn: 01267 242367 
HLMorgan@sirgar.gov.uk 
 
 
Rhif Ffon: 01554 748814 
SiEWilliams@carmarthenshire.gov
.uk 
 

 
  

Tudalen 19

Eitem Rhif  4



 

 

Declaration of Personal Interest (if any): 
Applicant is a Carmarthenshire County Council Cabinet Member (Cllr. Philip 
Hughes) 
 
 
 

Dispensation Granted to Make Decision (if any): 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 

DECISION MADE: 
 
 
 
 
Signed:  
____________________________________________________________DATE:_______ 
                                                                   CABINET MEMBER  
 

 
The following section will be completed by the Democratic Services Officer in attendance 
at the meeting 
 
Recommendation of Officer 
adopted 

YES / NO 
 

Recommendation of the Officer 
was adopted subject to the 
amendment(s) and reason(s) 
specified: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Reason(s) why the Officer’s 
recommendation was not 
adopted: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Tudalen 20



 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS MEETING FOR REGENERATION, 

LEISURE, CULTURE & TOURISM 
 

23rd March 2023 
 
 

Financial Assistance from the following grant fund:  
Carmarthenshire’s Business Renewable Energy Fund 

 
The Business Renewable Energy Fund is to assist businesses with renewable energy 
initiatives and carbon reduction. Applicants can apply for up to 50% of the project cost to a 
maximum of £10,000. Businesses supported will need to demonstrate their project will 
improve their carbon footprint. 
 
To approve a Grant Award to the value of £10,000 in respect of 1 Application in line with the 
Business Renewable Energy Fund Criteria, a funding stream administered by 
Carmarthenshire County Council. 
 

 
To approve the following: 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS / KEY DECISIONS REQUIRED: 
 

Carmarthenshire’s Business Renewable Energy Fund – Annex 1 
1 Application – Total Value = £10,000 
 
 
Total Number of Applications - 1     Total Value = £10,000.00 
 
DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED  YES 

 

 
IMPLICATIONS 

 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report: 
 
Signed:     Helen L Morgan                                         Economic Development Manager 
                                           
Policy and 
Crime & 
Disorder  
 

Legal  Finance  ICT  Risk 
Management 
Issues  

Organisational 
Development  

Physical 
Assets   

NONE NONE YES 
 

NONE  
 

NONE  
 
 

 NONE  
 
 

NONE  
 

 
 
 
 

Tudalen 21



 

3. Finance 
 
The Business Renewable Energy Fund has sufficient budget available to award the proposed 
project. 

 
 

CONSULTATIONS 
 
 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below 

Signed: Helen L Morgan                                                          Economic Development Manager 
 

1.Local Member(s)  
Cllr. Carys Jones 
2.Community / Town Council 
N/A 
3.Relevant Partners  
N/A 
4.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations  
N/A 
 
Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW      
 
Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public 
inspection  

Business Renewable 
Energy Fund 
 

BREF-22-46 
 
 

County Hall, Carmarthen. Carmarthenshire. SA31 1JP 
 
 
 

 
 

Tudalen 22



 
Grant Panel Report 

 
Report date – 13/3/2023 
Budget available - £415,880.50 
Total number of Business Renewable Energy Fund Applications – 1 
Total amount requested - £10,000 
 
 

Reference 
No: 

Applicant Project Description Comments Consultation Award Recommendation 

BREF-22-46 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Philip 
Hughes, The 

Old Board 
School Guest 

House 

This application is for the 
business – The Old Board 
School Guesthouse in St. 
Clears. 
Funding is required to 
supply and install; 

• A c.14kw solar PV 
system on the roof 
of the Guest House 
and  

• c.11kwh of battery 
storage  

The project is seeking 
funding from the 
Carmarthenshire Business 
Renewable Energy Fund 
which aims to support 
businesses to be more 
sustainable and efficient as 
well as CCC’s aim to be 
net zero carbon by 2030. 
  
Total project cost - £ 23,571 
Funding request - £10,000 

Project meets the fund 
criteria, all supporting 
evidence in place.  
 
Match funding is secured 
via own funds. 
 
Business has signed up 
to the Green Growth 
Pledge. 
 
Total Carbon Savings 
(tons CO2 e) = 8.55 
 
Panel recommends 
awarding £10,000. 

Cllr. Carys 
Jones (St. 
Clears with 
Llansteffan 
Ward) 
 

 
Approve 

 
Subject to: 

Planning Permission 

T
udalen 23

http://theoldschoolstclears.co.uk/
http://theoldschoolstclears.co.uk/


 
Total No 

Applications 
 

 
1 

    
Total Amount 

 
£10,000 

           

T
udalen 24


	Agenda
	2 CYMERADWYO A LLOFNODI HYSBYSIAD PENDERFYNIAD Y CYFARFOD A GYNHALIWYD AR YR 17EG CHWEFROR 2023.
	3 CYMORTH ARIANNOL O'R CRONFEYDD GRANTIAU CANLYNOL: GRONFA CYLLID A DARGEDIR
	Ychwanegiad 1
	2022-2023
	Report Author: Caroline Owen/Jayne Pritchard
	CAOwen@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
	JPritchard@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
	Tel: 01269 590216
	Budget Available - £26,000.00


	4 CYMORTH ARIANNOL O'R CRONFEYDD GRANTIAU CANLYNOL: CRONFA YNNI ADNEWYDDADWY BUSNES SIR GAERFYRDDIN
	Adroddiad


